Public Document Pack

C'I"";Gm .
i1 Y Filint
" 1 Contact Officer:
!ilulgxgbul re Maureen Potter 01352 702322

maureen.potter@flintshire.gov.uk

To: ClIr lan Dunbar (Chairman)

Councillors: Sian Braun, David Cox, Jean Davies, Ron Davies, Adele Davies-
Cooke, Rosetta Dolphin, Mared Eastwood, George Hardcastle, Ray Hughes,
Dennis Hutchinson, Ted Palmer, Mike Reece, Paul Shotton and David Wisinger

25 April 2019
Dear Councillor

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Community and Enterprise Overview &
Scrutiny Committee which will be held at 10.00 am on Wednesday, 1st May, 2019 in
the Delyn Committee Room, County Hall, Mold CH7 6NA to consider the following
items

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES
Purpose: To receive any apologies.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING
DECLARATIONS)

Purpose: To receive any Declarations and advise Members accordingly.

3 MINUTES (Pages 3 - 8)

Purpose: To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting on
13 March 2019.

4  TOWN CENTRE REGENERATION (Pages 9 - 14)

Report of Chief Officer (Housing and Assets) - Cabinet Member for Economic
Development and Interim Cabinet Member for Housing

Purpose: To set out the future approach to regenerating town centres in
the County.



DIGITAL CONNECTIVITY DEVELOPMENT (Pages 15 - 54)

Report of Chief Officer (Housing and Assets) - Cabinet Member for Economic
Development and Interim Cabinet Member for Housing

Purpose: To update Committee Members on the development of digital
infrastructure in North Wales and in Flintshire.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 55 - 62)
Report of Community and Enterprise Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator

Purpose: To consider the Forward Work Programme of the Community
& Enterprise Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

The following item is considered to be exempt by virtue of Paragraph(s) 14 of
Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

The report contains commercially sensitive information belonging to a third
party and the public interest in not revealing the information outweighs the
public interest in revealing the information.

NORTH EAST WALES (NEW) HOMES BUSINESS PLAN 2019/2048 (Pages
63 - 92)

Report of Chief Officer (Housing and Assets) - Cabinet Member for Economic
Development and Interim Cabinet Member for Housing

Purpose: To consider the North East Wales (NEW) Homes Business
Plan 2019/2048.

Yours sincerely

ol

Robert Robins
Democratic Services Manager



61.

62.

Agenda Iltem 3

COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
13 MARCH 2019

Minutes of the meeting of the Community & Enterprise Overview & Scrutiny Committee
of Flintshire County Council held in the Delyn Committee Room, County Hall, Mold on
Tuesday 13 March, 2019

PRESENT: Councillor lan Dunbar (Chairman)
Councillors: David Cox, Jean Davies Ron Davies, Rosetta Dolphin, Mared Eastwood,
Ray Hughes, Dennis Hutchinson, Paul Shotton and David Wisinger

SUBSTITUTIONS: Councillors: Haydn Bateman (for George Hardcastle), Andy
Dunbobbin (for Mike Reece) and Paul Johnson (for Ted Palmer)

APOLOGIES: Councillors: Sian Braun, Adele Davies-Cooke, and Jean Davies

ALSO PRESENT: Councillors: Christine Jones and Patrick Heesom attended as
observers

CONTRIBUTORS: Councillor Bernie Attridge, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for
Housing; Chief Officer (Housing & Assets); Chief Officer (Planning, Environment &
Economy); and Benefits Manager

IN ATTENDANCE: Community & Enterprise Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator and
Democratic Services Officer

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None were received.
MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting held on 18 February 2019 were submitted.

Accuracy

Minute number 57: Housing Strategy and Action Plan — Councillor Paul Shotton
referred to his comment on the social enterprise in Anglesey and asked that the wording
be amended to read providing “timber framed buildings” not “modular buildings”.
RESOLVED:

That subject to the above amendment the minutes be approved as a correct record and
signed by the Chairman.

Page 3



63.

UPDATE REPORT FOLLOWING THE DISABLED FACILITIES GRANT INTERNAL
AUDIT REPORT 2017

The Benefits Manager presented a report to provide an update on progress in
relation to the service control action plan. She provided background information and
advised that a Disabled Facility Grant (DFG) was available to owner occupiers and
private tenants to help individuals living with a disability with the cost of adapting their
homes to enable them to continue living at their residence. The maximum amount of
grant available in Wales was £36k. Where the application was for a child, or the applicant
was in receipt of appropriate qualifying benefits, there was no means test and the cost of
the adaptation up to the maximum grant was awarded. For other applications the amount
of the grant varied from zero to maximum depending on the cost of the approved works
and the financial circumstances of the applicant.

The Benefits Manager reported that following an internal audit an oversight board
had been established in July 2018 to ensure there was adequate and urgent
improvement to the delivery of the DFG. Work was ongoing to address and implement
the recommendations contained within the audit report and to review service delivery to
make improvements. An updated action plan was appended to the report which detailed
the progress made to date. The Benefits Manager reported on the improvements and
changes to DFG service delivery, as detailed in the report, and advised that work would
continue into 2019/20 to further improve delivery times and quality and bring the service
into line with the recommendations following the Wales Audit Office Housing Adaptations
Report and the Welsh Government Housing Adaptation service standards.

In response to a comment from the Chair, the Benefits Manager explained that
where the adaptations required were unsuitable at the applicant’s current residence a
Disabled Facilities Relocation Grant was available to cover the expenses of a disabled
persons’ move to a more appropriate property.

Members congratulated the Benefits Manager and her team on their work and
achievements to improve DFG service delivery.

Councillor Paul Shotton asked if further assistance was available if the cost of
adaptations was above the £36k maximum grant payable in Wales. The Benefits
Manager explained that a Disabled Facilities Discretionary Top Up Grant would be
considered in exceptional circumstances, up to an amount of £39k, where the cost of the
required works exceeded the statutory limit of £36k. She also advised that a DFG top up
loan, which was a discretionary loan secured against the value of the property could be
issued to meet the costs of the adaptation in excess of the DFG Grant and the DFG top
up grant.

The Benefits Manager reiterated that the amount of DFG grant would depend on
the cost of the approved works and where applicable an applicant’s financial
circumstances. A means test would be carried out on applications with the exception of
child applicants and where the adult applicant was in receipt of Council Tax Reduction
and/or Housing Benéefit.

Councillor Rosetta Dolphin asked if the long term needs of children were taken
into account to enable them to continue living at their residence. The Benefits Manger

Page 4



64.

explained that professional guidance from Social Services and Occupational Therapy
teams was considered in determining an application for a DFG and she confirmed that
regular reviews took place and the long term needs of the individual and their family was
taken into account.

Councillor Bernie Attridge reported on the revision of processes which would
further improve DFG service delivery times in the future.

Councillor Paul Johnson referred to the review of the Stannah Lift Service
Framework agreement and asked whether it had been adequate. The Benefits Manager
confirmed that the review had found that the agreement complied with the Council’s CPR
procedures.

Councillor Dennis Hutchinson asked whether adaptation equipment which had
been provided but was no longer in use was recycled and cited stair lifts as an example.
The Benefits Manager explained that where possible adaptation equipment was recycled,
subject to the necessary tests etc. being undertaken and agreed to look at whether the
success rate of the equipment recycled could be measured.

RESOLVED:

(@)  Thatthe Committee supports the content of the report and the action taken to date;
and

(b)  That the Committee supports the ongoing work in the service to improve service
delivery to our customers.

QUARTER 3 COUNCIL PLAN 2018/19 MONITORING REPORT

Councillor Bernie Attridge introduced a report to present a summary of
performance for the Quarter 3 (October to December 2018) position of 2018/19 for the
Council Plan priorities ‘Supportive Council’ and ‘Ambitious Council’ relevant to the
Committee.

The Chief Officer advised that the Quarter 3 monitoring report was a positive report
and showed that 92% of activities were making good progress with 85% likely to achieve
their desired outcomes. 67% of the performance indicators had met or exceeded their
targets. Risks were being managed with the majority being assessed as moderate (61%)
and minor/insignificant 22%. The report was an exception based report and therefore
focussed on the areas of under-performance.

Councillor Attridge reported on the following performance indicators which showed
a red RAG status for current performance against target:

e average number of calendar days taken to deliver a Disabled Facility Grant
(DFG)

e debtlevels will rise if tenants are unable to afford to pay their rent or council
tax

Page 5



65.

Councillor Paul Shotton referred to page 166 of the report and spoke of the impact
of Universal Credit and the hardship caused to individuals and families due to the time
taken to process applications. He said that the Department for Work and Pensions
(DWP) needed to be made aware of the concerns.

The Benefits Manager acknowledged the points made and explained that work
had commenced on the identification of the impact of Universal Credit on Council Tenants
and their rent accounts. She advised that a team worked with tenants at the earliest
opportunity to provide early identification and intervention (if appropriate) to prevent
problems escalating and providing a greater chance of the rent account coming back
under control and out of arrears. She also advised that the Council now had ‘Trusted
Partner’ status with the DWP which meant that processes and flow of information and
payments was more streamlined and automated. Council tax collection remained under
pressure. The Benefits Manager advised that an update report would be provided to the
meeting of the Committee to be held on 26 June 2019.

Councillor Paul Johnson commented on the difficulties experienced by people on
low incomes and the need to raise awareness of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme and
review how it was advertised. In response the Benefits Manager agreed to review the
merit of advertising the Scheme in line with the Welsh Government campaign.
RESOLVED:

That the Quarter 3 Council Plan 2018/19 Monitoring Report be noted.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The Facilitator presented the current Forward Work Programme for consideration.
The Committee agreed the items scheduled for the next meeting to be held on 1 May,
with the addition of a report on Town Centre Regeneration.

Councillor Paul Shotton referred to his previous suggestion for a report on Smart
Meters to be submitted to a meeting of the Committee. He said that he had received
concerns from a number of residents regarding switching of energy suppliers, installation,
and incorrect meter readings. The Chief Officer (Housing and Assets) suggested that a
briefing note on the installation of smart meters and any challenges encountered be
circulated to the Committee for information.

Councillor Dennis Hutchinson referred to an incident of anti-social behaviour in his
Ward and suggested a review of the SARTH was necessary. The Chief Officer (Housing
and Assets) reported that this had been undertaken recently and suggested that what
was required was a report covering tenancy management with particular emphasis
around enforcement. Councillor Hutchinson agreed that this would be helpful.

RESOLVED:
(@)  That the Forward Work Programme be noted; and
(b)  That the Facilitator, in consultation with the Chair of the Committee, be authorised

to vary the Forward Work Programme between meetings, as the need arises.

Page 6



66. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS IN ATTENDANCE

There were no members of the press and one member of the public in attendance.

(The meeting started at 10.00 am and ended at 10.57 am)

Chairman

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

Sir y Fflint
"'E!Era!g!z.!re

COMMUNITY AND ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Wednesday 15t May 2019
Report Subject Town Centre Regeneration
Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Economic Development and Interim

Cabinet Member for Housing

Report Author Chief Officer (Planning, Environment and Economy)
Type of Report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report has been produced in response to three key drivers:

1) Continuing challenging economic conditions being faced by town centres in
the UK;

2) A commitment in the 2018/2019 Council Plan to develop this response;

3) Concerns expressed by Scrutiny Committee members over the vitality of
Flintshire town centres and the need for the Council to establish a proactive
response.

The report summarises the economic challenges currently facing town centres
across the UK which are impacting upon their sustainability. The report outlines a
series of proposed responses to increase the diversity of uses in towns, to
strengthen the role of local stakeholder groups and to support businesses to adapt
and compete more effectively.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That Members consider and discuss the proposed approach to supporting
the regeneration of town centres in Flintshire.

Page 9



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE APPROACH TO TOWN CENTRE REGENERATION

1.01

Nationally, town centres are facing challenging economic circumstances
due to changing behaviour by shoppers and the retail industry. The 2018
retail review by Colliers International found that shoppers have gradually
been shifting their retail expenditure from local town centres to higher order
retail centres, out of town shopping parks, major supermarkets and,
increasingly, to the internet. In turn, retail businesses have significantly
retrenched into a smaller and smaller number of the most dominant centres.

These trends have been accelerated by the financial crisis of 2007/8 with
the loss of many high street brand names, but there had been a gradual
process taking place over several decades prior to that. In addition, this has
been further compounded by the withdrawal of retail banking services from
high streets as banks respond to customer preferences for internet and
telephone banking options.

1.02

Although Flintshire’s town centres have not been immune to this process,
the loss of major national chains and the increase in vacant floor space has
not been as significant an issue as Flintshire’s towns had very few national
brands still present and Woolworth’s was the only closure of significance.
The loss of high street banks has been more significant in several Flintshire
towns. This has, in turn, impacted on the scale and vitality of the street
markets in the County.

1.03

The approach to town centre regeneration in Flintshire to date has included:

e commissioning the 2009 health check study to provide baseline for
vitality and viability of town centres;

e developing long term plans with stakeholders in each town;

e investing in frontline service outlets in town centre locations to
improve customer access to services and increase foot fall;

e supporting local stakeholder projects including heritage initiatives,
environmental improvements and local promotion;

e guiding and responding to market interest in town centres;

o delivering property grants and streetscape enhancements to improve
appearance;

e providing business support and advice; and

e town centre promotion and support for events.

1.04

The Council has invested significant resources in strengthening local
community leadership. Examples include:

¢ working with Holywell stakeholders on the development of new
governance for the leisure centre and on the trial reopening of the
High Street to traffic;

e supporting Buckley Town Council in developing a long term action
plan for the town;

e bringing together Flint stakeholders to steer the transformational
regeneration of the town and, more recently, to develop their
aspirations for the foreshore area;

e working with Deeside stakeholders to develop a long term

Page 10




aspirational strategy for the area and securing major Welsh
Government investment towards its delivery; and

e supporting stakeholders in Mold to develop a long term town plan for
the town and with establishing a new governance model for
managing community green space.

1.05

A more fundamental shift in approach is needed to respond to the
challenges facing town centres. Towns in Flintshire have approximately the
same number of units as they did in their heyday when the majority of local
people spent the maijority of their earnings in their closest town. This is not
unique to Flintshire; research by the British Property Federation in 2016
found that many towns now have too many shops, especially at the
peripheries, and recommends that town centres are restructured around a
core area with peripheral areas converted to new uses.

The built fabric of town centres needs to change to reflect a new reality
where only a small proportion of local earnings are spent in town centres
and where roles such as service provision, space for social interaction and
living space are becoming increasingly important.

1.06

The delivery of the North Wales Growth Vision, through the initial phase of
Growth Deal capital projects and wider programmes of work, has the
potential to bring significant benefits to town centres. The overall
improvements to the economy will generate additional expenditure for town
centres and the inclusive growth work streams will help to reduce
concentrations of deprivation. Further, specific projects such as digital
infrastructure will help to improve business competitiveness and town centre
connectivity.

1.07

Proposed strategic approach to town centres

Resources are now considerably more constrained in terms of Council
capital and revenue for regeneration and Welsh Government funding
remains very limited. The regeneration team has, as its size has reduced,
focussed more on building the capacity of local stakeholder groups to
support their towns.

The value of this is reinforced by the 2018 report by the Institute of Place
Management which recommends that, in managing town centres as places,
the process needs to have strong local leadership, excellent communication
across stakeholders and a blend of local and expert input, including from
young people.

As an example, the approach in Holywell on projects including the transfer
of the Leisure Centre, the trial depedestrianisation of the High Street and
wider town centre projects has built a strengthening partnership between
the Council and more confident and aspirational local stakeholder groups.
This will be developed further through the development of a broad strategic
town plan to focus on service delivery in the town and on reducing the
impacts of deprivation.

This enabling approach has also been highly successful in the development
of alternative models of service delivery and social enterprises across the
County.

Page 11




1.08

Funding from Welsh Government for town centre regeneration remains
limited and has, in recent years, been increasingly focussed on property
interventions. The Targeted Regeneration Investment programme is
currently in its first year of operation and has been prioritised regionally on
the most deprived towns for the first three years; Bangor, Colwyn Bay, Rhyl
and Wrexham. Limited grant funding through the programme is available for
property investment in a wider range of towns (Holywell and Shotton in
Flintshire) and the Welsh Government can also offer repayable finance
toward property investments in other towns.

1.09

It is proposed that the strategic approach to regenerating town centres in
Flintshire includes the work streams below.

1. The Council will refresh the evidence base using the methodology
from the 2009 health check study. This research is underway as part
of the preparation of the Flintshire Local Development Plan.

2. Overall, developer interest, especially in retail and office investment,
is extremely limited and land availability for development in many
town centres is constrained. The Council will respond proactively to
market interest in town centre investment and will actively seek to
encourage investment wherever there are appropriate opportunities.

3. Continue to support front line service outlets in town centre locations
to enable access to Council (and partner) services whilst also helping
to sustain footfall.

4. In order to support the physical adaptations needed to help town
centres to adapt to the economic climate the Council will facilitate
land use change by:

e approving Local Development Plan policies for town centres that
enable land use change to be managed to promote sustainability
and vitality;

e identifying key sites for future redevelopment with an emphasis
on diversifying land use to increase sustainability and vitality;

e starting, subject to the availability of capital resources and
detailed investigation into commercial viability, to acquire key
sites for redevelopment; and

e taking advantage of potential investment in transport
infrastructure by Welsh Government to identify how wider
regeneration benefits can be realised in the immediate vicinity.

5. Town centre stakeholder groups have a vital role to play in
encouraging new customers, building local support and new uses for
town centres and in guiding service delivery. The Council will support
town centre stakeholder groups to develop and implement action
plans for their towns and will undertake County-wide actions to
support town centres for example through promotional activity.

6. Businesses face mounting competition for limited customer
expenditure and need to adapt to new ways of working including
greater use of digital technology in order to compete. Weakened
business vitality impacts on_their ability to invest in their properties

Page 12




which can lead to a vicious cycle of town centre decline. The Council
will help businesses to adapt to the changing economic climate by:

1. supporting business networking and shared learning;

2. providing grant or loan funding for property development as
resources allow;

3. increasing the availability and affordability of high speed
broadband connectivity; and

4. signposting businesses to Welsh Government support
programmes especially for digital skills.

5. Support the development of Business Improvement Districts
(BID), where viable. BIDs are companies established by the local
business community to make investments in their area that
improve business trading conditions, attract customers and
reduce operating costs. There are now over 300 BIDs in the UK.
The feasibility of developing a BID in Mold town centre is currently
being investigated.

1.10 | In addition, the Council will continue to actively seek external funding
opportunities to support the approaches set out in this report. Potential
projects will be developed in readiness for future funding streams.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | None arising from this report. It is considered that these proposals can be
undertaken using existing resources within the team, or via successfully
bidding to external funding sources.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | Any significant interventions in town centres will include full consultation with
local Members, town or community councils and local stakeholder groups.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | No specific risks identified in this report.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | None.

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None.

Page 13




Contact Officer: Niall Waller (Enterprise and Regeneration Manager)
Telephone: 01352 702137
E-mail: niall.waller@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

Business Improvement District (BID) — a business-led organisation tasked
with delivering a programme of pre-agreed projects and services funded by
investments by the businesses in that location.

Page 14




Agenda Iltem 5

Sir y Fflint
("ﬂimgbjre

COMMUNITY AND ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Wednesday, 15t May 2019
Report Subject Digital Connectivity Development
Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Economic Development and Interim

Cabinet Member for Housing

Report Author Chief Officer (Planning, Environment and Economy)
Type of Report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The North Wales Economic Ambition Board (NWEAB) have an ambitious vision to
improve the economy across North Wales. That vision has previously been
approved by Cabinet, and involves objectives to increase access to faster
broadband speeds. The Head of Housing and Economy from Wrexham County
Borough Council is the senior responsible officer for the regional digital work, with
support from officers from each county. This report explains the opportunities and
implications of the regional digital work for Flintshire County Council.

The report provides an update on the digital work carried out to date by NWEAB, in
particular, the development of the Digital Connectivity Strategy for the region. The
report also provides an update on the Local Full Fibre Network (LFFN) project being
developed to secure funding from UK Government’s Department for Digital, Culture,
Media and Sport.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That Members review the progress made in creating and implementing an
ambitious programme for digital connectivity in North Wales.

Page 15



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE NORTH WALES DIGITAL CONNECTIVITY
STRATEGY AND LOCAL FULL FIBRE NETWORK PROGRAMME

1.01

At their March 2018 meeting the NWEAB approved a Digital Connectivity
Strategy for the region, which is attached as Appendix 1. The Strategy has
been used to inform the bid for funding to the Local Full Fibre Network
programme and to inform the proposals for the North Wales Growth Deal.

1.02

In order to support the delivery of the Strategy, the NWEAB also agreed at
the March meeting to develop and submit a regional bid to the UK
Government’'s LFFN Programme Challenge Fund. The Fund is only for
investment in digital connectivity delivered by the public sector. It was
proposed and agreed that Denbighshire County Council (DCC) would be
the lead authority for the purposes of the LFFN bid, with a senior officer from
Wrexham County Borough Council continuing to provide the overall senior
responsible officer role.

1.03

The LFFN bid focusses on upgrading public sector connectivity by replacing
current copper (slow / low and relatively expensive bandwidth) connections
with better value, faster ‘full fibre’ connections at around 400 sites across
the region. Among the direct public sector beneficiaries will be the Local
Authorities, Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board, North Wales Fire and
Rescue and GP surgeries.

The public sector upgrades will be delivered via the well-established Welsh
public sector procurement framework known as PSBA (Public Sector
Broadband Aggregation), with BT providing the service to the sites.

Surrounding residential and business properties will benefit from the
investment in the fibre network. How will they benefit? Wider availability of
full fibre broadband to the private sector will result from the investment in
the public sector sites and UK Department for Culture Media and Sport
considers that those within 50m of the ‘target’ site (e.g. a library) to be within
reach of this positive impact, with this potentially extending to 200m
depending on local network design.

The outcome of the £13m investment will be an almost complete coverage
of full fibre connectivity across the public sector in North Wales, making it
one of the best connected in the UK.

1.04

An application has been submitted and in-principle approval has been
received subject to a series of detailed tests being met. The LFFN proposal
currently stands at £9 million worth of investment in the region.

1.05

Delivery of full fibre broadband on the proposed scale will result in more of
the region’s businesses accessing affordable, high quality connectivity,
typically only available in larger urban centres. This will facilitate not only the
growth of digital industries which support highly skilled, well paid jobs but
also most other sectors which are increasingly dependent on higher
standards of connectivity. These include tourism, manufacturing and retail.
Extensive consultation with businesses with the support of the North Wales
and Mersey Dee Business Council, on behalf of the NWEAB, has identified

Page 16




digital connectivity of this type as a consistent priority.

1.06

Around a third of the public sector sites to be upgraded are associated with
health board sites and around 100 of these are GP surgeries, sometimes in
very rural communities. Both UK and Welsh Governments have identified a
need for greater adoption of digital technology in healthcare. The current
lack of full fibre connectivity to these sites is restricting the innovation and
efficiencies being achieved elsewhere in better connected regions, with
routine tasks such as transferring patient records relying upon inefficient and
slow technologies.

1.07

Further proposals for improving digital connectivity across North Wales,
informed by the Strategy, have been included in the North Wales Growth
Deal programme currently being negotiated with UK and Welsh
Governments. The details of proposed activity is still to be fully determined
and will depend on the final level of resources available for this work stream.
Itis anticipated that the work stream will include measures to: improve digital
connectivity to strategic employment sites and along major transport
corridors and to increase domestic access to higher speed broadband
(building upon the Welsh Government Superfast Cymru 2 programme).

1.08

The regional officers group is working closely with Welsh Government
officials to ensure that proposals build upon and add value to wider
programmes including Superfast Cymru 2 and improvements to mobile
telephone infrastructure.

Other funding opportunities will be sought to expand the fibre infrastructure
of the region and the County, or to support business and households in
connecting to it.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

The increased connectivity to Council properties through the LFFN
programme will create opportunities to improve services through future-
proofed technology. There is a capital cost of approximately £33,000
associated with upgrading equipment in Council premises to take advantage
of the improved connectivity and an associated annual increased revenue
cost of £9,500 per annum.

There will be the requirement for Flintshire’s IT team to configure and install
this equipment to take advantage of the increased connectivity. This will
form part of the action plan associated with the delivery of the Council’s
Digital Strategy under the Business and Community work stream.

3.00

CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01

Consultation has been undertaken throughout the course of 2018 by the
NWEAB with;

e Each of the other North Wales Local Authorities (ICT and Economic

Page 17




Development)

Welsh Government (ICT Infrastructure Division)

UK Government (Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport)
North Wales Economic Ambition Board

Betsi Cadwalader University Health Board (NHS)

National Wales Informatics Service (NHS)

North Wales and Mersey Dee Business Council

Federation of Small Businesses

The outcome of this consultation has included the North Wales Digital
Connectivity Strategy (Appendix 1), a Digital Connectivity Action Plan for
the NWEAB Growth Bid and the proposed North Wales Local Full Fibre
Network Programme application.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | There are no risks foreseen in the Council adopting the North Wales
Connectivity Strategy. The Strategy should be reviewed periodically to
ensure it remains relevant.

4.02 | The risks associated with procuring new telecommunications duct networks
in key economic sites in the County involve potential for disruption to the
highways at the target sites which will be minimised as far as practicable.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix 1 North Wales Digital Connectivity Strategy

6.00 |LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None
Contact Officer: Niall Waller
Telephone: 01352 702137
E-mail: niall.waller@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | Local Full Fibre Network (LFFN) — a challenge programme funded by the

UK Government Department for Culture Media and Sport to increase fibre
connectivity in the UK.

North Wales Economic Ambition Board (NWEAB) — a statutory Joint
Committee tasked with delivering economic growth.

PSBA (Public Sector Broadband Aggregation) — a Welsh Government

Page 18



mailto:niall.waller@flintshire.gov.uk

framework for high speed fibre connectivity to public buildings.

Superfast Cymru 2 Programme — a Welsh Government programme to
increase the availability of faster broadband speeds to domestic premises.

Delivered by BT Openreach using, in most cases, existing copper telephone
infrastructure.

Page 19




This page is intentionally left blank



T¢ obed

North Wales Digital Connectivity Strategy
Strategaeth Cysylltedd Digidol Gogledd Cymru

Regional Strategy

North Wales
18" March 2018



2¢ obed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

Contents

—

Introduction

Executive Summary
Digital Priorities
Requirements by Sector
Current Availability

Intervention Strategy

N o U A W N

Technical Background

10
16
23
29

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy



ez abed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

1.

Introduction

Improved digital connectivity is identified as the
most important factor in the ongoing economic and
social transformation of North Wales. The North
Wales Digital Connectivity Strategy details the
rationale and the interventions for the development
of digital connectivity to match this transformation to
2030 and beyond.

The digital strategy supports the Growth Vision for
the Economy of North Wales !, with development
funded through the North Wales Growth Bid and
other sources of funding.

The North Wales Digital Connectivity Strategy is a regional
collaboration of six local authorities and the private sector
(through the North Wales and Mersey Dee Business
Council). The regional strategy has been developed to
complement local and national strategies to establish a
‘joined-up” approach to ensure the maximum economic
benefit will result.

The regional strategy concentrates on the vision for
economic growth, the key sectors and the consequential
spatial distribution of the actions required to make a
difference. In addition, it targets the key strategic sites
which have been agreed in the Growth Vision for the
Economy of North Wales.

Regional Priorities

Local Priorities

Advanced

Manufacturing EREEY Digital

North Wales Regional

Digital Connectivity
Strategy

Regional Strategic Sites for
Employment and housing

Local Digital
Connectivity Strategy

| Anglesey |

Conwy ‘ ‘Denhighshire| | Flintshire | Wrexham |

‘ Gwynedd ‘

T I 1 T

Local Issues and Priorities |

Fig.1 Context of regional and local digital connectivity strategies

The local strategies are broader; each local authority area benefits
from and contributes to the regional priorities and seeks to
address specific local issues in terms of local sector priorities and
local priority sites.

Local and regional strategies benefit from, and seek to support
and extend national strategies from Welsh and UK governments.
These include the ongoing Superfast Cymru? programme as well
as the Welsh Government Mobile Action Plan® and UK Digital
Strategy 2017 °.

Fig.1 illustrates the context of the activities and illustrates how the
local strategies both address local issues and priorities but are also
key to the delivery of the regional strategy.

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy



vz abed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

Executive Summary

Digital Priorities

The Growth Vision for the Economy of North Wales identifies a
number of key economic sectors and key sites that are central to
the growth of the economy in North Wales. In addition, there are
sectors and locations that are important locally. Key sectors
identified in this report are:

* Energy Cluster = Construction
= Advanced Manufacturing »=  Tourism and hospitality
» Digital Cluster » Health and Social Care

Requirements by Sector

Although all businesses have different specific requirements
based on their size and operation, different sectors tend to have
different characteristic needs that can guide interventions:

= Energy Cluster — The Energy Cluster supply chain needs to
exchange large data files. Even relatively small companies
may require high bandwidth, but are mostly focused in key
locations. Ensuring full fibre connections for affordable
services at these locations is required.

= Advanced Manufacturing — Like the Energy Cluster,
Advanced Manufacturing needs to exchange large files
throughout the supply chain, and between building facilities
within companies. Small companies may need large
bandwidth, and large companies may have locations where
leased lines are not affordable.

Digital Cluster — As with the other high growth sectors, the
potential for high bandwidth file exchange is critical.
However, the sector is more geographically dispersed —
requiring high bandwidth services throughout the region.

Construction — The need for effective document control
means that main offices need good bandwidth capabilities,
but there is also a need to communicate with remote sites.
Improved availability of superfast and 4G throughout the
region will benefit the sector.

Tourism and hospitality — Tourism locations need to meet
the aggregated connectivity expectations of several users at
once. Increasing bandwidth expectations of individual users is
leading to significant bandwidth requirements.

Health and Social Care - the digital transformation of the
sector, and the need for connected mobile workers means
that superfast broadband for all is a key social requirement.

Sector Digital Requirement

Energy Cluster Full fibre at key locations

Manufacturing Full fibre at key locations

Digital Cluster Ultrafast and superfast widely available

Construction Ultrafast and superfast widely available

Tourism & hospitality Ultrafast and superfast widely available

Health & Social Care Superfast available to all properties

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy




Gz abed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

2.3

Current Availability

The Superfast Cymru project has delivered significant
improvement in superfast broadband across the region since
2013, and the FibreSpeed ® network gives potential core strength
in the north. However, the current digital connectivity in North
Wales remains poorer than Wales as a whole and significantly
lags the rest of the UK.

There are ‘white’ (un-connected) properties throughout the
region. Limited reach of the FTTC access infrastructure causes
most of the weakness in superfast deployment. Poor underlying
core infrastructure means there is poor access to higher value
services throughout the region.

Mobile connectivity also is significantly poorer than in the rest of
the UK, with poor coverage and inadequate capacity.

Strengths Weaknesses

Shared leadership throughout
the region gives the potential
for greater overall benefit
through greater capacity.

Poor existing core and access
infrastructures, and low
population density present
commercial barriers.

Opportunities

FibreSpeed, Network Rail
Telecom and public sector
connections present key
opportunities to improve
connectivity.

Threats

Established ‘digital divide’
presents a long term threat of
economic and social decline.

2.4

Intervention Strategy

A number of initial key interventions have been identified to begin
to deliver improved connectivity at local and regional level:

= Full fibre passive infrastructure — improved duct network
to facilitate end-user access to full fibre gigabit services.

= Affordable gigabit services — development of high
bandwidth contended FTTP services to meet business needs.

= Improved backhaul — development of the FibreSpeed,
Network Rail Telecom and Public Sector connectivity routes to
improve core connectivity.

= SME Demand stimulation — voucher based schemes to
promote demand and support all initiatives.

= Rural Broadband Deployment — to support the Next
Generation Access Broadband Wales project and improve
deployment of superfast and ultrafast broadband in remote
rural areas.

= Social Housing Broadband — digital connectivity to
improve service efficiency and social outcomes.

= Public Sector Anchor Tenant — explore options to use fibre
at schools and other public buildings to extend backhaul
connections throughout the region.

= Policy Support - review and improvement of planning and
similar policies to reduce policy barriers.

= Market Intelligence — establish effective communication
channels for key market data to service providers.

= 5G Demonstrators — development of 5G use-case
demonstrators.

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy



9z abed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

Digital Priorities

The North Wales Digital Connectivity Strategy has been
developed to establish local strategies for each of the six counties
in North Wales, and an over-arching strategy for the region. In
this way, the regional strategy will address some of the key
similarities and differences between the six counties, and how
they contribute to the region. Locally, the six counties will benefit
from the influence of the regional strategy, and maintain their
local priorities.

Growth Vision

Central to the Digital Connectivity Strategy development is the
Growth Vision for the Economy of North Wales and the Growth
Bid, currently in development. The Growth Vision is a single
joined-up vision for economic and employment growth for the
region with a strong private sector involvement and a
collaborative approach with surrounding areas. As well as the
economic ambitions, the vision plans to address the social,
environmental and cultural well-being of North Wales; to support
and retain young people in the local economies; address
worklessness and inactivity; and to support and enable private
sector investment. A portfolio of strategic projects has been
identified to address Infrastructure, skills and employment and
support for business growth. Digital infrastructure has been
identified as a key aspect of the infrastructure needed for growth
and effective digital infrastructure and its widespread use will help
to build on areas of strength as well as ameliorate some of the

3.1.1

disadvantages suffered by the more rural and remote parts of the
region.

Key Industry Sectors
The key industry sectors identified in the Growth Vision are:

= Energy Cluster — with a number of key locations throughout
the region, energy presents a key strategic strength.

= Advanced Manufacturing — manufacturing is a key sector
for the economy and employment of the region. particularly
in Flintshire and Wrexham.

= Digital Cluster — the developing digital cluster has the
potential for economic growth across the region.

Underpinning this,
Employment Plan
manufacturing and construction),
(creative and digital, health and social
hospitality, food and drink).

the MNorth Wales Regional Skills and
identifies three priority sectors (energy,
and four growth sectors
care, tourism and

6

The digital connectivity priorities presented by these sectors are
different. While the three key industry sectors very high
bandwidth in a few locations, the growth sectors require less
bandwidth, but in locations throughout the region.

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy



/¢ abed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

3.1.3

Strategic Sites and Premises

The Growth Vision identifies a number of key sites and premises
(see Fig.3 on page 8). These sites primarily support the three key
industry sectors, and present focus locations for economic growth
for the region. These strategic sites for development are:

»= Northern Gateway, Deeside

=  Warren Hall, Broughton

*  Wrexham Technology Park

=  Wrexham Industrial Estate

=  Wrexham Business Quarter

» St Asaph Business Park

* Bodelwyddan

»= Abergele South East

= Parc Bryn Cegin, Bangor

= Parc Cefni expansion, Llangefni

» Parc Cybi, Holyhead

* Holyhead Port

= Ferodo Site, Caernarfon

»= Centre for Energy Generation at Trawsfynydd
* Snowdonia Aerospace Centre, Llanbedr
*= Menai Science Park

It is expected that all of these sites will see improved connectivity
as a result of this strategy because they are the sites where
significant growth is expected. Other important sites which
support significant employment are expected to benefit similarly.

3.1.4

Mapping of the strategic sites across the region shows the
majority are in the north, and close to the FibreSpeed network.
This gives the potential for strong development of digital
connectivity to these sites. However, the Centre for Energy
Generation at Trawsfynydd, and the Snowdonia Aerospace Centre
at Llanbedr present much greater problems for digital
connectivity.

Infrastructure Plan to enable Growth — Digital

Three strategic projects to strengthen the regional
infrastructure are identified in the Growth Vision:

digital

= Promote and deliver projects that increase ultra-fast
broadband and mobile coverage that enable our businesses
to access new markets.

=  Accelerate the roll-out of the connectivity infrastructure
programme in the region.

= Support continued investment in the digital network and
infrastructure, especially maobile connectivity, and promote
activities to exploit the availability of superfast broadband.
Monitor usage and promote the capacity provided.

These three projects require development to establish practical
projects that can be delivered to provide specific benefits
throughout the region.

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy



gz abed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

3.1.5 Digital Options

Current digital connectivity is provided through a number of
different technologies, and with different capabilities. These
present a number of different digital options that have different
characteristics and benefits:

= Leased lines — provide the most advanced (and most
expensive) digital connectivity. Used at key locations by the
largest organisations, they provide symmetrical, un-
contended (not shared) connections in a range of
bandwidths.

= Gigabit FTTP - offering very high bandwidth contended
services delivered over full fibre technology, they provide an
affordable solution to meet the most advanced data
requirements. Availability of these new services is poor.

»= Ultrafast — similar capabilities to gigabit services, but slightly
lower bandwidths allow delivery over different technologies,
and hence greater availability.

= Superfast — typically delivered over FTTC (mix of fibre and
copper) infrastructure, superfast services present a step
change in broadband capability. They form the base level for
a modern connected community.

= Broadband - original broadband services were delivered
over copper lines from the exchange. They may be all that is
available in ‘white’ areas (where Superfast broadband is not
yet available). Speeds vary from 0.5Mbps. Ofcom currently
specifies 10Mbps as ‘decent broadband'.

= Mobile Communications — are constantly evolving. The 2G
GSM networks are still important for voice services. 3G data
networks are being superseded by 4G with better coverage
and capacity. Soon 5G capabilities will complement 4G
networks and Voice will move to VoLTE as 4G coverage
extends as far as that of 2G networks.

All current digital connectivity utilises optical fibres for at least
part of the connection route. Optical fibre connections provide the
greatest flexibility of bandwidth and distance — and are
consequently seen as the most ‘future-proof’ connections as the
digital requirements of all businesses and users continue to grow.

To provide a simple comparison, the impact of different
broadband types on the download times for a typical two hour
movie is shown in Fig.2.

120

©0
o

3 hours >

9 hours >

w
o

Download time (minutes)
[e)]
o

Broadband Decent Superfast Ultrafast Gigabit
Broadband

B Standard Movie B HD Movie UHD Movie

Fig.2 Film download times for broadband services

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy



6¢ obed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

FibreSpeed route

Railway route
Regional strategic site
* Local strategic site

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy



o€ abed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

3.3 Other Strategic Drivers
The business sectors identified in the 3500
Growth Vision are not the only priorities
for the individual counties. This is made 3000
clear in the Gross Value Add (GVA) by I
sector for the region. Manufacturing is a 2500
very important sector for North Wales as 5000
a whole, though the majority of the GVA
impact is in Flintshire and Wrexham. 1500
Other sectors — in particular the public 1000
sector, and tourism related businesses
(including retail) are important to the 500 . B _
region and have a wider economic l I . | .
impact throughout the six counties. 0 -
N ]
Addressing the specific requirements of 8"&00 d&{\&o Q)é‘o(\ 000@ 006‘@5 &4“\"‘6’ é\&‘é Q}A\é’ .&é‘o %é;\\‘“z
the different business sectors will be %\Q@ é\&’b (90‘;\ . & & > ,3}% \0@‘; & 0,5@"
important, particularly at local levels. \@9 \(,\® © \\4\" \\\‘S‘\ 4\07’0 QQ}& \%‘;’ OQO\' qé‘\
Addressing the societal requirements of Q\ ® \\\$ \V§ h ~
digital connectivity must also be o o
considered. M Isle of Anglesey B Gwynedd ™ Conwy M Denbighshire M Flintshire B Wrexham

Fig.4 GVA by Sector 2016 (£ million)

Source: Office for National Statistics

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy



T¢ obed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

Requirements by Sector

Digital connectivity requirements for different sectors are determined by the technical requirements and the geographic distribution of businesses.

4.1

Digital Requirements

Different industry sectors have different demands for their digital connectivity. Understanding the different requirements by sector, and the relative
priorities of each sector is central to the Digital Connectivity Strategy.

Sector

Key Digital Connectivity Requirements

Intervention

Manufacturing
and Energy

Large manufacturing facilities use high bandwidth leased lines — which are widely
available. The need for high bandwidth connectivity is now well established in the more
advanced manufacturing businesses — consequently ultrafast and full fibre are required
to support growth in the sector, particularly in the supply chain.

Support for full fibre connectivity in key
areas for the sector.

Digital

The digital sector is an early adopter of high bandwidth services. The sector is
characterised by SMEs in geographically dispersed clusters with some larger businesses
(with more employees and greater data requirements) in the main industrial centres.

Support for ultrafast connectivity to be
as widely available as possible with full
fibre for larger digital businesses.

Tourism and
Hospitality

The tourism and associated sectors increasingly need to accommodate the ‘always
connected’ expectations of their customers, as well as the ability to communicate with
customers online, including booking online. Although the individual connectivity
requirements and online booking of individuals are easily met with superfast broadband,
the aggregated bandwidth demands of several users represents a greater challenge.
Ultrafast broadband is becoming a necessary requirement for all tourism businesses.

Support for widespread ultrafast and
superfast broadband connectivity for
tourism business locations. Increased
superfast and mobile connectivity
throughout the region to improve
visitor engagement.

Public sector,
health and
social care,
real estate

The public sector, including health and social care sector has demands for digital
transformation development and adoption. Developments can be expected to be
undertaken in strategic locations with existing connectivity. Adoption of digitally
transformed services, however, require superfast connectivity at the care service user’s
premise, and data and voice connectivity for a mobile workforce.

Support for superfast and ultrafast
connectivity at end care service user
premises (ubiquitous superfast
broadband). Improved mobile and WiFi
connectivity for mobile workers.

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy

10




2 abed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

4.2

4.2.1

4.2.2

Key Business Requirements

Interviews were held with representative businesses from the key
sectors across North Wales. These provide a valuable insight to
the requirements of these sectors for all counties in North Wales.

General Mobile Improvement

In addition to the following specific business requirements, there
was widespread agreement among all businesses that poor
mobile coverage for voice calls along the main communications
routes was a barrier to business efficiency.

If we have an engineer leaving here to a job in north west
Wales, then once they are 10 minutes from here, they are
regularly out of touch until they reach civilisation at the
other end. (MWL Systems)

Any issues engineers have with mobile coverage on client
sites can be resolved by Wi-Fi calling. (MWL Systems)

Manufacturing and Energy

Businesses in the strategic manufacturing and energy sectors are
struggling because of poor affordable digital connectivity. Even
relatively large businesses have a problem because they tend to
use a number of smaller buildings, rather than one single
manufacturing facility. There is a widespread and un-met need
for ultrafast FTTP infrastructure and services that can provide
affordable high capacity, high reliability connections.

Ultrafast would have a profound influence on the way we
do business. (Reynolds International)

4.2.3

4.2.4

Every minute counts and when a lot of time is wasted
because of slow or broken connectivity, then it is harming
the bottom line. (Carbon Zero)

Our Quality Management System has 1000 policies. This
has been supplemented with photographs to aid
understanding. It is likely that video will become an
integral part of the manual too over time. (Snowdonia
Cheese)

We need to be connected to Poland and Morocco in real
time for database sharing. Poland and Morocco outstrip
us in terms of their data communications. (Fibrax)

Digital and Professional Services

Digital and service companies have benefited from the efficiency
improvements possible with affordable superfast broadband,
though there are concerns over reliability and scalability.

Small businesses are able to migrate to the cloud easier
than large businesses and that makes their scaling up
much more straightforward. (MWL Systems)

It's more about service reliability than absolute speed. I
rarely find myself worrying about the speed. (Salisburys)

Tourism and Hospitality

Tourism and related businesses span a wide range of business
types and sizes, and they are closely inter-related. People visiting
North Wales provide the principal target group for many other
hospitality businesses. The connectivity requirements include the

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy

11



cc abed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

requirements of the businesses themselves, and the ability for
visitors to connect with them during their stay. Superfast and
ultrafast connections are needed by businesses, with better
overall connectivity in the region also important.

We use technology to build the customer relationship at
three levels. We use our online presence to make people
aware of us. We then use it to build trust and when the
trust is there, to make a booking in the smoothest
manner possible. Without that on-line presence we
wouldn’t be able to employ the people that we do. (RibRide
- Adventure Boat Tours)

The majority of our customers book less than 48-hours
before the activity... When they are sat in their holiday
cottage and they cannot get online — that’s when we are
not getting them. (RibRide - Adventure Boat Tours)

People sat in B&Bs and hotels around need to be able to
get on line and see what’'s going on — what can I do? (Surf
Snowdonia)

4.2.5

4.2.6

Construction

The construction industry is undergoing a transformation through
the development of Document Management Systems (DMS), and
the need to communicate detailed construction drawings and
documents within the business and with clients. Superfast (FTTC)
connections are being used for main sites, and upgrade to FTTP
would be beneficial — leased lines are too expensive.
Communication with sites remains a problem. Satellite services
are used currently, but are not well suited to DMS. 4G mobile and
widespread superfast connections are needed.

Having better communications will have a huge impact on
us as a company. For instance, accidentally using the
wrong version of a drawing could cost the company
millions. A modern DMS will reduce that risk — but it
needs good communications at HQ and all sites to work
effectively. (Jones Brothers Engineering)

Public Sector, Education

Public sector sites, including schools and colleges have varied
connectivity requirements, and these are developing rapidly to
meet the demands and opportunities of digital transformation.
The provision of digital connectivity to public sector buildings
could enable wider connectivity to surrounding businesses and
communities.

PSBA has been brilliant for us. It took them a little while
to understand our requirements, but they were very
responsive. (Grwp Llandrillo Menai)

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy

12



7€ obed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

4.3

Spatial Requirements

There are some important differences between the different The spatial variations in requirements are driven largely by the
industry sectors in the way businesses are located that makes a different geographies across the region. There is considerable

significant difference in the development of interventions.

4.3.1 Manufacturing

There are some important
differences  between the
different business sectors.
Manufacturing businesses, for
example are located in
clusters — the great majority
of the physical clusters
adjacent to the FibreSpeed
route, or along rail routes.

The manufacturing sector in
North Wales is characterised
by a relatively small number
of typically large businesses.
There are very few ‘white’
manufacturing businesses
(with no current or planned
superfast connectivity) as
illustrated in Fig.5 by the
lighter coloured squares.

clustering of businesses and properties along the coast, for
example, and significant challenges posed by remote rural areas.

rrrrr o m
Birchwood

(57

ton
Lymm PR A

— FibreSpeed route

— Railway route

2 m Manufacturing site (black/grey)
NC I e O Manufacturing site (white)

Google = g eSS N7

Fig.5 Mapping of Manufacturing Businesses in North Wales

oo

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy 13



G¢e abed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

4.3.2 Tourism

By contrast with
manufacturing, tourism
presents a far more complex
picture.

There are many more tourism
businesses, widely distributed
across the region. The
businesses are smaller, and
there are many ‘white’ tourism
businesses as illustrated by
the light coloured squares in : o’ | S
Fig.6. = 3 i )%3 54 2 o) 5\:3:5:‘}‘{ e 7

Tofthaeads ym Mochnant

N e

FibreSpeed route
Railway route

Tourism site (black/grey)
Tourism site (white)

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy 14



9¢ abed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

4.3.3 Connected Community
Many sectors, including health  Map data © 2018 Google
and social care, and tourism
require an effectively
connected community — either
to engage with customers, or
as an internal element of
digital transformation.

Ensuring widespread
availability of superfast
broadband throughout North
Wales will be an essential
enabler of this digital
transformation. Mapping of
the remaining 27,000 ‘white’
residential properties shows
there is a significant task
remaining across the region to
increase the deployment of
superfast connectivity.

L4

Fig.7 Mapping of ‘white’ residential properties in North Wales

FibreSpeed route

— Railway route
o  Black or grey property
o Under review property
©°  White property

Ensuring a fully connected community, with access to superfast Social housing, care homes, and other residences for vulnerable
broadband for all is a key requirement across the region. people have typically higher demand for health and social care
However, this is a challenging requirement, and prioritisation of services. Prioritising these properties may be an effective way of
deployment may be required in the short term. supporting the digital transformation of key public services.

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy

15



/€ obed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

5. Current Availability

The Superfast Cymru project in Wales, and similar projects Current fixed broadband availability in North Wales lags behind
across the UK mean that the position regarding fixed broadband the UK and Wales as a whole. Although there is unusually high
availability is changing rapidly, making comparisons difficult. availability of full fibre broadband in Anglesey and Gwynedd,
The most effective comparison for the UK is provided in the there is generally poor availability of superfast broadband, and
Ofcom Connected Nations 2017 7 report and analysis. This is lower average speed than national comparisons.

based on data for May/June 2017.

UK 2017 North Wales 2017
Superfast coverage, premises 91% Superfast coverage, premises 81% Conwy 2017

Full fibre coverage, ential premises 3% Full fibre ential premi: 5% 28%
Cannot get decent broadband, premises 4% g 7% e

Average upload speed, Mbit/s 5

Average download speed, Mbit/s 44

Average upload speed, Mbit/s 6

Flintshire 2017
n .
Superfast coverage, premises 83%
Full fibre coverage, residential premises
Cannot get decent broadband, premises 5%

i 5%
\\ Average download speed, Mbit/s 26

Isle of Anglesey

Superfast coverage, premises 71%
Average upload speed, Mbit/s 5
Full fibre coverage, residential premises 9%
Cannot get decent broadband, premises 10%
Wrexham 2017
Average download speed, Mbit/s 23
Superfast coverage, premises

Average upload speed, Mbit/s 4 e, . s
Full fibre coverage, residential premises

Cannot get decent broadband, premises
Average download speed, Mbit/s
Average upload speed, Mbit/s 5

Denbighshire
w
o

87%
2%
4%
26

P

Gwynedd

Average download speed, Mbit/s 23

Average download speed, Mbit/s 21
Average upload speed, Mbit/s 4

:
Fig.8 Fixed Broadband Availability in North Wales (Ofcom data)

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy 16



g¢ abed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

5.1

BT Group Core Infrastructure

The great majority of
superfast connectivity in North
Wales is provided over the
Openreach network. All
exchanges are FTTC enabled,
with FTTP also used in some
locations.

The remaining white
properties in the region can
be assumed to be beyond the
reach of FTTC access
networks. To address this
problem, improved access
networks will be required, and
they in turn will require
backhaul connections.
Backhaul is usually provided
from a BT exchange enabled
to provide EBD (Ethernet
Backhaul Direct) services.

There are very few EBD enabled exchanges in North Wales.
Although current developments to the core infrastructure is
improving this position, particularly on Anglesey, the lack of
backhaul availability continues to present a strategic problem for
the development of improved connectivity.

Map data © 2018 Googlé qf

J

Google © P S Vel

Fig.9 Mapping of BT exchanges in North Wales

5.1.1 BT Group

/’/

gtase | Pieadd m
Liverpool B’ V" ™

Birkenl eég P

Lymm PR Al

i 55

Crewe

FibreSpeed route

Railway route

Standard BT exchange
EBD enabled BT exchange

Openreach is currently a part of the BT Group, and responsible for
the operation of the infrastructure delivering telephony and data
services. Openreach services are used by communications providers
to deliver services to end business and residential users.

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy

17



6E abed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

5.2

Other Digital Infrastructure

There is relatively little digital
infrastructure in North Wales
beyond the BT infrastructure.
The  FibreSpeed network

Wlsse\| prosids m
g

Birkenl eég P

(357

Lymm PR Al

Map data © 2018 Google (;’””

i 55

T

operated by Zayo Networks is 1)
the most significant, with wiN)
some additional commercial
footprint provided by Zayo
Networks.  The  networks ;
follow the path shown by the
purple line in Fig.10. ==
The networks deliver
wholesale capacity used by | w0 N AT el B, SN e e, e mm
other service providers to
deliver services to end users. FibreSpeed route
Railway route
Regional strategic site

e ot ’ o i 4 Local strategic site

Fig.10 Mapping of Independent Core Digital Infrastructure in North Wales
The FibreSpeed and Zayo networks provide the potential for very The FibreSpeed and Zayo networks also have no footprint beyond
high bandwidth connectivity, and pass very close to the majority the coastal area in the north. Rail routes (black lines in Fig.10)
of strategic sites in the region where high bandwidth connectivity however, do extend to more remote areas throughout the region.
is required to support economic growth. However, as the Some of these routes support Network Rail Telecom infrastructure
networks currently only provide high-cost leased line services, that may be able provide commercial servces, in accordance with

they are little used.

the Network Rail Telecom Strategic Plan®.

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy 18



0t obed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

5.3 Public Sector Connectivity

Areas of poor broadband  Map data © 2018 Google
connectivity exist across the

region (Fig.7, page 15). Effective
interventions will require the
presence of high bandwidth
connectivity to allow the build-
out of broadband access to these
un-served areas.

uase)\ \

LiVérpool ML Hovten

Northwich
Hartford

Although FibreSpeed has the
potential to support backhaul
connections for the north of the
region, and the possible use of
Network Rail Telecom may e
extend this further, many areas
are still beyond the reach of

FibreSpeed route
— Railway route

backhaul connections. © St E SRk

@ EBD enabled BT exchange
However, all schools in North i : ¢ School
Wales  will soon have fibre gig 11 Mapping of schools in North Wales
connectivity and are widely
distributed (see Fig.11).
The majority of digital connections for schools in Wales are Options will be investigated to allow the presence of digital
provided through the Public Sector Broadband Aggregation (PSBA) connectivity at public sector buildings to support the provision of
project. The location of schools in almost all communities wider digital connectivity to nearby businesses and homes.

throughout the region means this could have a significant impact
on the ongoing availability of backhaul for local access networks.

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy 19



T obed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

5.4 Mobile Connectivity

Data in the Ofcom Connected Nations 2017 report shows that
mobile connectivity in North Wales is also significantly poorer
than the UK and Wales as a whole. Capability for both voice and
data is poorer than the UK, particularly within premises.

UK North Wales
Telephone Indoor premises 90% Telephone 45%
Outdoor geographic area 70% &3 51%
Data Indoor premises 85% Data 60%
Outdoor geographic area 63% 54%
4G Indoor premises 58% 24%
Outdoor geographic area 43% 24% |
Isle of Anglesey “

Telephone 29%

»

Telephone 42%

Fig.12 Mobile Connectivity in North Wales (Ofcom)

Gwynedd

54.1

Constant Evolution

Mobile connectivity is constantly evolving, with new technologies
introduced regularly. This provides an opportunity to overcome
previous weaknesses. For example, 4G coverage has already
outstripped 3G, so that we no longer need to consider 3G
deployment.

Conwy 2017
calls

Data

Outdoor geographic area 46%
Outdoor geographic area 46% . .
| urdoor geographic ren [N 2017

Outdoor geographic area 20%
\

J

Wrexham
Telephone 51%
Denbighshire

Telephone 53%

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy

20



2t obed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

5.4.2

5.4.3

Connectivity Requirements
The different uses of mobile devices (for voice and data) presents
two different connectivity requirements:

Remote access — the need to make calls and access data at
remote locations (away from the home or office location). This
presents a requirement for maximum overall coverage.

Mobile calling — the desire to make and receive voice calls while
travelling. This presents a requirement for maximum coverage
along the road routes, particularly the major road routes.
However, coverage alone is not sufficient. There are capacity
issues along the major routes, which are exacerbated in the
summer when visitors greatly increase traffic on the major routes.

It is becoming clear that WiFi access to superfast or ultrafast
connectivity is the preferred approach for remote access. This is
clearly the case for data access, and also becoming the accepted
preference for voice calls (with WiFi calling supported by all
mobile operators). The key business requirement for maobile
connectivity is to support mobile calling. The priority is for full
connectivity (coverage and capacity) along major road routes.

Key Technologies

The deployment and evolution of mobile technologies means that
it is important to focus on the most appropriate technologies for
the region, rather than necessarily considering the sequential
development of each technology.

5.4.4

5.4.5

= 2G - still has the greatest coverage and availability within
premises. It is still the most important coverage for mobile
voice calls. Maintaining widespread coverage and adequate
capacity remains important.

= 3G - Introduced stronger data capabilities, but is no-longer
strategically important following widespread deployment of
4G. We do not include 3G in this strategy.

= 4G - Important for data and voice. Supporting maximum
deployment of 4G services is the priority for mobile
connectivity.

= 5G - A new and evolving standard that promises a new level
of connectivity supporting a vast range of new applications.

2G Deployment

2G coverage along the A55 is good with most of the length
covered by all three networks. The other major routes have good
coverage generally, but network availability deteriorates badly in
the middle and the south of the region. Gwynedd, Conwy and
Denbighshire have the worst coverage problems.

In total, 50% of the land area of the region has coverage from all
three 2G networks with 18% having no coverage.

4G Deployment

As 4G is much newer technology which is currently being rolled
out, it is not surprising that coverage is much sparser than 2G.
Only around 24% of the geographic area of North Wales has
coverage from all four 4G networks. What coverage there is, is
concentrated in the north of the region leaving the south and

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy

21



oy abed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

5.4.6

central parts of the of the region with very poor coverage. The
areas served by no operators are extensive with 26% of
Denbighshire being without any 4G coverage.

Coverage of the A55 is reasonably good with very little with
coverage from no operators. However, there are stretches in
Flintshire, Conwy and mid-Anglesey where coverage is not
available from all operators

The other A roads which reach southwards face considerable
difficulty with little coverage by all four 4G networks.

5G Development

The evolving 5G networks represent a step change in mobile
connectivity, and a convergence of mobile and fixed broadband
networks. The resulting networks are expected to enable a huge
range of new applications, including autonomous vehicles, real
time health monitoring and advance manufacturing applications.

The expectation is that 5G will provide mobile access to very high
bandwidth connectivity. However, the 5G wireless networks have
very short range. There is little understanding of how they will be
deployed and used in remote and rural areas, where significant
gaps in coverage can be expected.

Current UK and Welsh government priorities are to develop and
understand use-cases to guide the ongoing development and
deployment of 5G networks. There is an opportunity for North
Wales to contribute to the development of use-cases in key
sectors, and across a range of deployment geographies.

5.4.7 Other Developments

The Internet-of-Things (IoT) presents a myriad of opportunities
for organisations from security monitoring of remote farm assets
to sophisticated augmented reality experiences at major tourist
attractions and urban centres. It will be important for North
Wales to remain informed on the development of supporting
technologies, and access opportunities as they arise.

Continued engagement between private and public sector, and
possible inclusion of universities on the North Wales Economic
Ambition Board will support the ongoing monitoring of
developments and opportunities.

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy

22



vt abed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

6.1

6.1.1

Intervention Strategy

The following intervention strategy has been developed to
address the remaining digital connectivity issues and help to
deliver the Growth Vision for the Economy of North Wales.

Key Comparisons

National interventions are based on a number of key policies and
strategies that have developed over time to address different
aspects of digital connectivity. The MNorth Wales Digital
Connectivity Strategy is informed by a comparison of the current
position in North Wales, and an understanding of current
interventions elsewhere.

Best practice approaches to increase deployment of improved
digital connectivity vary significantly from area to area. For
example, interventions in urban areas and business parks will be
very different from remote rural areas. Approaches aim to
accommodate current and developing best practice.

Fixed Broadband Development

It appears clear that there is a need to develop regional and local
support initiatives to increase the availability of superfast
broadband in North Wales, and that this must be balanced
against the need to support greater economic growth through the
development of more advanced gigabit and ultrafast connectivity.

Early developments of the Local Full Fibre Networks (LFFN)
programme are identifying best practice approaches for

increasing deployment of gigabit capable full fibre networks;
these are accommodated in the full fibre passive infrastructure
and improved backhaul interventions.

The Superfast Cymru project has delivered a significant increase
in the availability of superfast broadband across North Wales.
However, low average broadband download speeds and large
numbers of people unable to access a decent connection suggest
there is greater underlying weakness in digital connectivity that
risks a significant long term ‘digital divide’ holding back the
economy and development of a vibrant connected community.

UK Government interventions are shaped by the UK Digital
Strategy 2017. This provides a focus to the development of
advanced full fibre and 5G services, but also underpins this with
the Universal Service Obligation (USO) ‘giving every individual,
business and public premise across the country the right to
request an affordable high speed broadband connection’. The
USO is currently expected to provide a connection of 10Mbps or
faster, though the method of delivery is not yet clear.

In Scotland, the desire to ensure the digital inclusion of all has led
to Reaching 100% - Superfast Broadband for All ° giving a
commitment to provide superfast broadband (30Mbps or faster)
to every home and business in Scotland by 2021.

Ofcom 2017 data states that in England, 3% of homes cannot get
a decent broadband connection (at least 10 Mbps). In Scotland it
is 6%, Wales 5%, and North Wales 7%.

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy

23



Gy abed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

6.1.2

The Scottish Government has committed £600 million to the
Reaching 100% project. The Welsh Government has recently
published the procurement for the MNext Generation Access
Broadband Wales project, with £62 million funding committed and
the possibility to increase to £200 million.

Interventions for remote rural areas are informed by community
developments such as the B4RN group * in Lancashire, and
Community Broadband Scotland ! projects — where direct
community involvement has enabled improved broadband
networks in remote rural areas.

Mobile Connectivity Development

The national comparison presents a worse picture for mobile
communications. The geographic coverage for voice and data is
significantly behind the UK average. Poor availability of voice and
data services within buildings suggests a capacity weakness
beyond the poor geographic coverage.

Direct intervention to improve mobile communications is much
less common than for fixed broadband networks. However, the
UK Electronic Communications Code * identifies a range of
changes designed to improve the availability of fixed and mobile
communications. These changes are supported in Wales by the
Mobile Action Plan with a range of actions aimed at supporting
the mobile operators in increasing their investment in
infrastructure to improve service delivery.

Regional and local support for the Mobile Action Plan is required
to ensure support for North Wales by the mobile operators.

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

Key Requirements

The following key requirements have been identified to meet the
economic and societal needs of the region.

Full Fibre Manufacturing and Energy

The key regional economic sectors of manufacturing and energy
require gigabit capable full fibre connections. In North Wales,
these sectors are generally restricted to clusters in key locations
throughout the county. Even relatively small businesses need high
bandwidth, but may not be able to support leased line costs.
Affordable, high bandwidth contended broadband services are
required.

Ultrafast Tourism, Digital and Real Estate

The high growth digital sector, and the vital tourism and real
estate sectors in North Wales require superfast, and ultrafast
connectivity wherever possible. These sectors are distributed
throughout the region, though they are clustered in a small
number of key locations. The sectors have high demand for
bandwidth — either due to aggregated demand of many users, or
specific need for large file transfer.

Connected Travel

Poor mobile connections are a problem throughout North Wales —
providing personal inconvenience and disrupting businesses.
Effective mobile communications to support voice calls on all
major transport routes is a minimum requirement.

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy

24



o abed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

6.2.4 Superfast Society

6.3

All businesses and communities require superfast broadband as a
minimum — for example to support self-employment and home
working, for the efficient delivery of health and social care,
operation of local retail businesses, or simply for family
entertainment. The remote rural and upland areas throughout the
region have particular need for improvement.

Key Interventions

Key interventions are needed regionally to improve digital
connectivity, in particular to support the key economic sectors,
and to close the gap between North Wales and the rest of the UK.

National — Regional — Local Approach

The regional interventions required will have a range of different
impacts and levels of complexity. This regional development is
also undertaken in the context of wider national and more
focused local activity:

= National developments — The Superfast Cymru project has
already made a significant impact on the availability of
superfast and ultrafast broadband. The second phase of the
project will continue to improve superfast availability but is
not expected to achieve 100% coverage. The development of
networks and assets with national significance and scale will
require Welsh Government leadership and coordination.

» Regional developments — The development of improved
backhaul and affordable gigabit services, for example, will
affect many areas across the North Wales region. Regional

developments will be commissioned by the Regional Growth
Board, with lead authorities accountable for delivery for the
region as a whole.

= Local developments — The coordination of all projects
locally will be required to ensure maximum impact. This will
include the local support of national and regional
interventions as well as the development and deployment of
local interventions to deliver requirements beyond the scope
of national and regional programmes. Local developments will
also be required to enable regional and national
developments — for example development of local planning
and policies to remove barriers to digital infrastructure
deployments.

Together these layers of interventions will help to realise the
Growth Vision for the Economy of North Wales. Within each
county, some will be more relevant for local conditions than
others.

= Full Fibre passive infrastructure — Building a
comprehensive access duct network, and ensuring backhaul
provision to facilitate end-user access to advanced full fibre
services provided at the identified key sites. With appropriate
planning of duct infrastructure, this will support the key
manufacturing and energy sectors.

= Affordable gigabit services — Businesses in North Wales
need affordable high bandwidth services to *fill the gap’
between FTTC broadband and leased lines. Service providers
should be encouraged to ensure suitable services are
available over their networks.

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy

25



/v obed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

Improved backhaul — The development of the core
infrastructure will benefit the development of all digital
connectivity in North Wales. The development of the
FibreSpeed network and other infrastructure assets present
opportunities to improve core connectivity.

SME Demand stimulation — Encouraging the use of higher
bandwidth connectivity, particularly in key local business
sectors (including hotel and leisure). Connectivity delivery
initiatives can only be successful if demand is present — a
range of targeted demand stimulation activities will be
required to support all interventions. Voucher schemes for
SMEs have proven successful in the past and provide a basis
for demand stimulation.

Rural Broadband Deployment — The availability of
superfast and ultrafast connectivity to all businesses and
communities in North Wales is important to the sustainability
of the region. Engagement and interventions to extend the
deployment of Superfast Cymru , Next Generation Access
Broadband Wales and other national initiatives into rural
areas are required. A range of approaches including gap
funding, voucher schemes and direct community build may
contribute to the extended coverage.

Social Housing Broadband — Social housing presents areas
of high need for a range of health and social care services,
and typically areas of poor availability and use of digital
connectivity. Direct provision of digital connectivity can
improve service efficiency and social outcomes.

Public Sector Anchor Tenant — The use of connectivity to
public sector buildings can extend the core network. This
effect can be maximised by ensuring appropriate connectivity
to all public sector sites, particularly in areas of poor local
connectivity.

Policy Support — Direct intervention is not always possible
or appropriate — for example to improve mobile coverage.
However, reducing the barriers to investment that complex
planning and similar policies can impose will support greater
investment and deployment. A review and improvement of
planning and similar policies can be undertaken to reduce
policy barriers. A national review * has been undertaken by
Analysys Mason for the Broadband Stakeholders Group, and
can guide development.

Market Intelligence — Service providers (fixed and mobile)
do not always know the local demand requirements. Where
there are key factors that may affect demand, the information
should be provided, and effective communication channels
established to service providers.

5G Demonstrators — The development of 5G services
presents another important development. Demonstrations
within the region will help stimulate further development and
deployment.

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy

26



gy abed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

6.4 Application and Funding

The different projects have different target groups, and different funding streams will be appropriate (darker shading is denotes greater relevance):

Target Groups
Project Energy Cluster | Advanced Digital Cluster Construction Tourism & Health & Social
Manufacturing hospitality Care
Full Fibre passive
infrastructure
Affordable gigabit
services

Improved Backhaul

SME demand
stimulation
Rural broadband
deployment
Social Housing
broadband
Public Sector
anchor tenant
Policy support

Market intelligence

5G Demonstrators

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy 27



61 abed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

6.5 Delivery and Impact

The aim of the North Wales Digital Connectivity Strategy is to deliver economic and social development, particularly in key areas and sectors
identified in the Growth Vision for the Economy of North Wales. In targeting these sectors, interventions have been identified to support ambitious
growth targets in key sectors, stimulate organic growth throughout the region and create new opportunities for business and learning throughout
North Wales, irrespective of location.

To ensure an effective impact, targets have been identified to guide the scope and timescales for intervention. Progress against these targets will
ensure that the digital needs of the high growth sectors are met, and deliver the stretching economic, social and cultural objectives of the Growth

Vision.

Initiative Target Delivery

Full fibre passive 80% of the premises on the strategic sites identified are passed by duct infrastructure. End 2021

infrastructure 100% of the duct Provided is accessed by at least one network provider End 2021

Affordable gigabit services Competitive provision of affordable full fibre broadband services from at least three operators. End 2019

Improved backhaul Removal of all backhaul constraints to all communities in the region. End 2021

SME demand stimulation 20% adoption of Ultrafast broadband by tourism businesses. 5% adoption by businesses from other sectors. End 2022

Rural Broadband Superfast broadband available to 99% of premises. End 2021

Development

Social Housing broadband 99% of social housing and care homes connected to superfast or ultrafast broadband. End 2021

Public Sector anchor Fibre access to all appropriate public-sector sites in the region. End 2021

tenant

Policy Support Policy review to identify possible obstacles to digital deployment End 2019
Removal of identified obstacles End 2020

Market Intelligence Establish a communications mechanism with fixed and mobile operators to communicate significant unmet Mid 2019
need and likely changes in demand profile.

5G Demonstrators Establish North Wales participation in at least three separate major 5G initiatives at Wales or UK level End 2020

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy 28




0G abed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

/. Technical Background

Digital connectivity is provided through a range
of technologies, with different technologies at
different parts of the network.

Internet

The network is in three main parts:

= National Backhaul is required to bring
internet access to the local BT exchange.

Telephone

= Local Backhaul brings internet access to Exchange Telephone
the specific project areas.

= Access Network provides the final NATIONAL BACKHAUL
distribution to individual properties within

Wireless §]#

V)
Hi .
Jome LN wif
Receiver

Telephone Broadband PCP Home

Exch (Green Phone
XChange Telephone o) Socket

LOCAL BACKBONE ACCESS NETWORK

the project area. Fig.13 Schematic of the broadband network structure

Modern digital networks use optical fibres throughout much of
their construction. The aim of the development of superfast
and ultrafast networks is to maximise the use of fibre in as
much of the network as possible.

For superfast and ultrafast networks, fibre must be used for the
backhaul connection to the local area. There is an expectation
that fibre will also be used for the local backbone — leaving only
the ‘last mile” access network connection.

The replacement of the access network connections to individual
end users’ properties represents the largest potential cost. Fibre to
the Cabinet (FTTC) or Fixed Wireless Access (FWA) networks
provide cost effective connections, but with performance
limitations. Fibre to the Property (FTTP) networks provide the best
performance and are considered the most ‘future-proof’ — but are
significantly more expensive to deploy.

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy

29



TG obed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

7.1

Glossary
4G

5G
Backhaul

Black / grey / white
properties / sites

Ethernet Backhaul
Direct (EBD)

Fibre to the Cabinet
(FTTC)

Fibre to the Premises
(FTTP)

Gigabit broadband
PSBA

Superfast broadband
Superfast Cymru

The fourth Generation of Mobile Technology, currently extensively deployed and rolling further out across the UK

The fifth generation of Mobile Technology. The standards for this are still in definition but deployments are happening
internationally ahead of full standards definition

The intermediate links between local access networks which connect the customer and the core backbone networks
which distribute communications traffic more widely

Black/grey/white definitions relate to state aid definitions of availability of superfast broadband:

= Black: properties able to access Superfast Broadband from more than one service provider

= Grey: properties able to access Superfast Broadband from at least one service provider within next three years
= White: not in any current plans (next three years) for superfast broadband

A service offered by BT at particular exchanges where an ISP can buy backhaul to their chosen location.

A fixed broadband technology whereby traffic to and from a customer is delivered by optical fibre as far as the local
street cabinet and thence over a twisted copper pair using VDSL technology.

A fixed broadband technology whereby traffic to and from a customer is delivered by optical fibre all the way to the
customer premises.

Broadband communications which offers speeds in excess of 1000Mbit/s for download.

Public Service Broadband Aggregation: PSBA is a Wales-wide network which connects public sector organisations in
Wales to a private secure Information and Communications Technology (ICT) Wide Area Network (WAN)

Broadband communications which offers speeds in excess of 30Mbit/s for download.

A Welsh Government initiative to ensure the roll-out of superfast broadband in areas where commercial deployment is
unlikely.

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy 30



ZS obed

north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

7.2 References

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Growth Vision for the Economy of North Wales; North Wales Economic Ambition Board, July 2016
https://democracy.cyngor.gwynedd.gov.uk/documents/s14828/Item%2010%20-%20Appendix%201%20-%20North%20Wales%20Growth%20Deal%20Bid. pdf

Superfast Cymru: “We want everyone to be able to access fast reliable broadband. This is key for Wales to become a truly digital nation.”
http://gov.wales/topics/science-and-technology/digital/infrastructure/superfast-broadband

Mobile Action Plan; Welsh Government, 2017
http://gov.wales/docs/det/publications/171003-mobile-action-plan-for-wales-en.pdf

UK Digital Strategy 2017; Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport, March 2017
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-digital-strategy/uk-digital-strategy

FibreSpeed] “high performance fibre optic network connecting North Wales to the global digital economy”
http://gov.wales/topics/science-and-technology/digital/infrastructure/fibrespeed/?lang=en

North Wales Regional Skills and Employment Plan 2015-2019; North Wales Economic Ambition Board, 2015
https://issuu.com/nweab/docs/skills plan final web file

Connected Nations 2017; Ofcom, December 2017
https://www.ofcom.org.uk/ data/assets/pdf file/0024/108843/summary-report-connected-nations-2017.pdf

Network Rail Telecom Strategic Plan; Network Rail, January 2018
https://www.networkrail.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/02/Telecoms-Strategic-Plan.pdf

Reaching 100% - Superfast Broadband for All
http://www.gov.scot/Publications/2017/12/2810/1

Broadband for the Rural North (B4RN)
https://b4rn.org.uk/

Community Broadband Scotland
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Vc4oyenewol&feature=youtu.be

UK Electronic Communications Code
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/reforms-to-boost-uks-digital-infrastructure

Lowering Barriers to Telecoms Infrastructure Deployment; Analysys Mason, May 2017
http://www.broadbanduk.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/05/Lowering-barriers-to-telecoms-infrastructure-deployment-Final-report. pdf

Digital Connectivity Strategy North Wales Regional Strategy 31


https://democracy.cyngor.gwynedd.gov.uk/documents/s14828/Item%2010%20-%20Appendix%201%20-%20North%20Wales%20Growth%20Deal%20Bid.pdf
http://gov.wales/topics/science-and-technology/digital/infrastructure/superfast-broadband
http://gov.wales/docs/det/publications/171003-mobile-action-plan-for-wales-en.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-digital-strategy/uk-digital-strategy
http://gov.wales/topics/science-and-technology/digital/infrastructure/fibrespeed/?lang=en
https://issuu.com/nweab/docs/skills_plan_final_web_file
https://www.ofcom.org.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0024/108843/summary-report-connected-nations-2017.pdf
https://www.networkrail.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/02/Telecoms-Strategic-Plan.pdf
http://www.gov.scot/Publications/2017/12/2810/1
https://b4rn.org.uk/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Vc4oyenewoI&feature=youtu.be
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/reforms-to-boost-uks-digital-infrastructure
http://www.broadbanduk.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/05/Lowering-barriers-to-telecoms-infrastructure-deployment-Final-report.pdf

€g abed

north wales economic ambition board

{ bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

GreySky Consulting

Long Acre, Piccadilly Lane, Upper Mayfield, Ashbourne DE6 2HP
01670 330000 www.greysky.co.uk consulting@greysky.co.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

Sir y Fflint
"E!Ew!o%!z.ire

COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting Wednesday, 1t May 2019
Report Subject Forward Work Programme
Cabinet Member N/A
Report Author Community & Enterprise Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator
Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to determine the
Forward Work programme of the Committee of which they are Members. By
reviewing and prioritising the Forward Work Programme Members are able to
ensure it is Member-led and includes the right issues. A copy of the Forward Work
Programme is attached at Appendix 1 for Members’ consideration which has been
updated following the last meeting.

The Committee is asked to consider, and amend where necessary, the Forward
Work Programme for the Community & Enterprise Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

RECOMMENDATION

1 That the Committee considers the draft Forward Work Programme and
approve/amend as necessary.

2 That the Facilitator, in consultation with the Chair of the Committee be
authorised to vary the Forward Work Programme between meetings, as
the need arises.

Page 55



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | EXPLAINING THE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

1.01 Items feed into a Committee’s Forward Work Programme from a number
of sources. Members can suggest topics for review by Overview &
Scrutiny Committees, members of the public can suggest topics, items can
be referred by the Cabinet for consultation purposes, or by County Council
or Chief Officers. Other possible items are identified from the Cabinet
Work Programme and the Improvement Plan.

1.02 | In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful for a ‘test of
significance’ to be applied. This can be achieved by asking a range of
questions as follows:

1. Will the review contribute to the Council’s priorities and/or objectives?
2. Is it an area of major change or risk?

3. Are there issues of concern in performance?

4. Is there new Government guidance of legislation?

5. lIs it prompted by the work carried out by Regulators/Internal Audit?

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 None as a result of this report.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | Publication of this report constitutes consultation.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | None as a result of this report.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix 1 — Current Forward Work Programme

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None.

Contact Officer:  Ceri Shotton

Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator
Telephone: 01352 702305
E-mail: ceri.shotton@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 56



mailto:ceri.shotton@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

Improvement Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of
the Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure
2009 to set Improvement Objectives and publish an Improvement Plan.

Page 57




This page is intentionally left blank



COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME Appendix 1
CURRENT FWP
Date of meeting Subject Purpose of Report Scrutiny Focus Report Author SBZ':;T{?:"

Wednesday 26t
June 2019
10.00 am

6G abed

Welfare Reform Update
— Universal Credit Roll
Out

Quarter 4/Year-end
Council Plan 2018/19
Monitoring Report

Homeless Local Action
Plan Update
Update on Housing

Rent Income

Modular Homes

To provide an update on the
impact of Welfare Reform on
Flintshire residents

To enable Members to fulfil their
role in relation to performance
monitoring

To provide an update on
progress being made in relation
to the Homeless Local Action
Plan

To provide an update on current
Rent Arrears

To receive a report on the
concept and options available in
using modular homes to
increase the supply of Council
properties.

Assurance Monitoring

Assurance Monitoring

Assurance Monitoring

Assurance Monitoring

Information sharing

Benefits Manager

Overview & Scrutiny
Facilitator

Chief Officer (Housing
and Assets)

Revenues Manager

Housing Strategy
Manager




COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME Appendix 1

Items to be scheduled to a date

e Update on private sector housing renewal strategy
e Smart Metres — as suggested during the 16t October meeting.
e Current borrowing conditions and interest rates — as suggested during the 11t September County Council meeting

09 abed

REGULAR ITEMS



COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

Appendix 1

Responsible / Contact

Month Item Purpose of Report Officer
Quarterly / Performance Reporting To consider performance outturns for improvement targets Chief Officer (Housing and
Annual against directorate indicators. Assets)

Chief Officer (Planning,
Environment and Economy)
Six monthly | Welfare Reform Update — To update Members on the impact of Welfare Reform and the | Benefits Manager
including Universal Credit cost to the Council.
Six monthly | Update on North East Wales To update Members on the work of the North East Wales Service Manager — Housing
o Homes & Property Management Homes & Property Management Programmes
Q
(@)
Arually — WHQS Capital Programme — To provide an update on progress of the Welsh Housing | Chief Officer (Housing and
September Delivery review update Quality Standards (WHQS), that the Council is delivering | Assets)
= through its Capital Investment Programme. Report to include
information around the use of local labour and number of
apprentices and school leavers.
Quarterly Update on Housing Rent Income | To provide an update on rent collection and current arrear | Revenues Manager

levels




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Town Centre Regeneration
	5 Digital Connectivity Development
	Enc 1 - Regional Digital Connectivity Strategy

	6 Forward Work Programme
	Appendix 1 - Current Forward Work Programme

	7 North East Wales (NEW) Homes Business Plan 2019/2048
	Appendix 1 - NEW Homes Business Plan 2019-2020
	Appendix 1a - NEW Homes Business Plan Profit and Loss Forecast 2019-2020
	Appendix 2 - NEW Homes Development Strategy
	Appendix 3 - NEW Homes Performance Plan


